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Introduction

This desktop survey report is for part of an evaluation conducted on behalf of Bowlts Chartered Surveyors for the proposed re-development of the bus station at Farraline Park, Inverness. 
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Site Location

See Highlighted area over.
Historical Background

The area of the development lies to the current centre of Inverness. The burgh of Inverness dates to the late 12th century but may have had an earlier beginning, though it only largely developed after 1746. The site lies outwith the core of the medieval town (Hall, forthcoming).

Cartographic Evidence
The site lies in an area on Brigadier Petite’s map of c.1718 (not illustrated) as being under strip cultivation. John Howie’s map of 1774 (see over) shows the same, with nothing being indicated on John Wood’s map of 1821 (see over). The 1st edition of the Ordnance Survey of 1867 (see over) shows a school with a playground to the foreground, likewise indicated on the OS maps of 1903 and 1929 (see over).

Archaeological Background
The following sites are currently listed in the Highland Council Sites and Monuments Record and the National Monuments Record of Scotland CANMORE database :

NH64NE 050 – Farraline Park School of 1841.

NH64NE335 – East Parish Church of 1873 and hall of 1891.

NH64NE778 – Drill Hall (now Spectrum centre) of 1871.

The school was opened in 1841, though the idea of a school had begun in 1831, as Bells’ Institution after gift of £10,000 and continued in use until 1937. The school being built on a field formerly owned by the Town Council. 

A note in the Inverness Courier newspaper of 1837 notes the sale of the field by public roup by the Town Council with a feu-duty of £50 but was unsold. The site was acquired for the school in 1839. (Pollitt, 1981) During the construction of the school in 1840 workmen found the remains of 9 skeletons, irregularly laid out and it has been suggested (Pollitt, 1981) to have been associated with “persons killed during an attack on the burgh’s nearby palisaded defence’s”. (Pollitt, 1981,30) [The line of the town defences is thought to follow the line of Academy Street (formerly New Street) though it is recorded that another town ditch was built in 1644 as part of the Town’s defences against the Marquis of Montrose, though not recorded in this area.]

The area of the bus station formerly being the playground of the school (as noted on the maps of 1887-1929) and parade ground of the Royal Artillery Volunteers who used the playground from 1859 until 1885. The bus station was situated here in the late 1940’s.

Past archaeological work in the surrounding area is as follows :

- Excavations at 10 Margaret Street by Gordon Ewart in 1978, to the south, revealed extensive dumping of modern material to a depth of 1.05m with no archaeological features being found.

- Trial trenching on the site of MFI in Academy Street in 1998 by the Scottish Urban Archaeological Trust (Coleman, 1998), to the east, revealed no archaeological remains survived. There was no trace of any ploughsoil from fields, as depicted on 18th century maps. The only features revealed dating to the 19th or early 20th century.
Trial Trenching Investigation

Objectives

To conduct a desktop survey and an evaluation of 5% on the area of development and to record those features revealed by excavation work. A copy of the specification provided by Highland Council Archaeology Unit is enclosed
The trial trenching as recommended by Highland Council Archaeology Unit could not be currently carried out due to the bus station still being in use. 

Recommendations

Due to the evidence produced in the Margaret Street and Academy Street excavations there is a high possibility of little or no archaeological remains surviving in this area, the following recommendations with regards to this development project are to be proposed: 

- Because currently trial trenching is not possible due to the factor of the bus station still being in use or will be in use as the development proceeds, an archaeological watching brief should be conducted on any ground works or demolition of existing buildings. This watching brief could ‘double-up’ as the evaluation and gauge quickly the possibility of any archaeological remains being disturbed by this development, though adequate allowances should be made for their recording if discoveries are made.
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